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"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty” JSC

Management's Conformation of Responsibilities for the Preparation and Approval of the Consolidated
Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2024

The following statement, which should be read in conjunction with the description of the auditors' responsibilities
contained in the independent auditors' report presented, is made to distinguish the auditors' responsibilities with
respect to the consolidated financial statements of Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation Almaty JSC and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the Group).

The Group's management is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024, and the results of its
operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the period then ended, in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (hereinafter referred to as IFRS).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

s ensuring the correct selection and application of accounting policies;

e presentation of information, including accounting policy data, in a form that ensures the relevance,
reliability, comparability and understandability of such information;

e disclosure of additional information in cases where compliance with the requirements of IFRS is not
sufficient to enable users of the financial statements to understand the impact that certain transactions, as
well as other events or conditions, have on the financial position and financial performance of the Group;

+ assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls for the Group;
Maintaining adequate records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group, and which enable them to ensure
that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

e accounting in accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan and IFRS;

» taking all reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of the Group; and

¢ identification and prevention of financial and other abuses.

These consaolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024 were approved by the Group's
management on 26 March 2025 and signed on its behalf by:

AlimovaB.E// *

'io, ‘m \

‘4
D Chg‘lrma Board Chief Accountant - Director of the Accounting and
& foneywerin wocinsepni % A Reporting Department
q KOPMOPALHACELD E ‘)
* gl £ \’
iCaudrnbro &
P nWﬂﬂpsthm;.’".-rﬂ‘/ 5.}3
a7 ¥npNIERHA éi\‘b )

Lt (N\uavua/ v
%0 e 4
"’a'l'r‘-'puoe 01':3:;?" V4
F3gxcrar
EgxsL



% Russell Bedford

taking you further

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the shareholder and management of "Social and entrepreneurial corporation "Almaty" JSC
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation Almaty JSC
and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December
31, 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present true and fair view, in all material respects, of the
financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for expressing opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, when appropriate, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management intends to liquidate the Group, cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to liquidate or cease operations.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

The auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.



As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to error
because fraud can include collusion, forgery, intentional omission, misrepresentation, or override of internal
contral;

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control; evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

conclude on the appropriateness of management's going concern assumption and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to be a going concern;

evaluate the overall presentation , structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other things, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during the audit.

Auditor's qualification certificate No. M®-
0000720 dated 10.01.2019.

050000, Almaty, Republic of Kazakhstan
Abish street Kekilbaiuly 34

March 26 , 2025
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“Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty"” JSC

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at December 31, 2024

December 31, December
thousand tenge Note: 2024 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 12,384,885 12,092,405
Investment property 6 7,010,754 5,904,628
Intangible assets 197,942 215,840
Non-current financial assets 7 22,671,001 15,668,371
Investment securities 32,211 62,739
Non-current accounts receivable 8 47,494,045 43,502,738
Deferred tax asset 24 67,478 -
Other non-current assets 9 5,618,732 7,704,213
Total non-current assets 95,477,048 85,150,934
Current assets
Inventory 10 31,729,280 10,492,396
Trade and other receivables 8 5,159,036 453,662
Current financial assets 7 2,199,791 2,758,160
Prepayment of income tax 2,068,355 9,570
Advances paid and other current assets 11 27,372,043 9,154,904
Repo asset 12 7,248,580 11,728,105
Cash and cash equivalents 13 70,178,560 69,727,029
Total current assets 145,955,645 104,323,826
TOTAL ASSETS 241,432,693 189,474,760
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 14 193,351,569 193,351,569
Repurchased equity instruments 14 (22,356,100)  (21,051,538)
Retained earnings/(Uncovered loss) 7,464,500 (562,047)
Total equity 178,459,969 171,737,984
Non-current liabilities
Non-current loans received 15 2,904,495 7,709,313
Other non-current liabilities 16 246,729 214,628
Deferred tax liabilities 24 - 96,195
Total non-current liabilities 3,151,224 8,020,136
Current liabilities
Current loans received 15 6,230,608 4,240,207
Trade and other accounts payable 17 5,156,132 3,452,692
Taxes and payments due 143,663 65,043
Corporate income tax payable 181,000 1,811,399
Liabilities under buyers' contracts 16 48,110,097 147,299
Total current liabilities 59,821,500 9,716,640
Total liabilities 62,972,724 17,736,776
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 241,432,693 189,474,760

These consolidated financial statements have heen approved by the Group's management and signed on their
behalf by:

DLt
Alimova B.E. L//U

ard Chief Accountant - Director of the Accounting and
Reporting Department

N h

an-af

KOFNOPaLUACE!D ).
— | #

_-—C_;,;_Jam.no- / 3y

< HMET I aCKAR ey

Mar Q_’ 4 —25mc;n:nﬂ _o_f )r
® SANMETLIY v

The ex "jp}l?éﬁj@fm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
X




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended

December 31, 2024

thousand tenge Note: 2024 2023

Revenue from contracts with customers 18 9,171,030 5,968,099
Cost of sales 19 (8,769,944) (3,769,918)
Gross income 401,086 2,198,181
Costs of implementation (396,436) (135,850)
Administrative expenses 20 (3,232,671) (3,550,058)
Financial income/(expenses), net 21 10,408,913 (16,291,041)
Other income/(expenses), net 1,025,515 90,233
Income from sale of property, net 22 178,534 31,151,626
Share of loss of associates - (36,363)
Net gain/(loss) on exchange rate differences (23) 2,579,685
Reversal of impairment losses/(losses) 23 (148,764) 3,038,202
Income before tax 8,236,154 19,044,615
Income tax expenses 24 (235,803) (7,916,328)
Net income for the period 8,000,351 11,128,287
Other comprehensive income for the period - -
Total comprehensive income for the period 8,000,351 11,128,287

These consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Group's management and signed on their
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The explanatory notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Direct Method) for the Year Ended

December 31, 2024

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Operational activities

Cash received from customers 4,288,784 40,408,102
Advances received from customers 46,646,650 36,504,948
Security deposits 29,338 50,657
Repayment of loans issued 5,409,191 4,587,832
Interest received on loans 1,245,973 2,109,429
Other receipts 74,484 2,579,849
Issuance of loans (12,495,253) (8,132,410)
Cash paid to suppliers and contractors (46,276,004) (106,103,017)
Cash paid to employees (2,115,350) (1,985,867)
Other taxes and social payments paid (1,048,228) (1,183,544)
Income tax paid (3,965,228) (6,223,250)
Refund of guarantee deposits (493,367) -
Interest paid (1,477) (463,681)
Other payments (17,948) (18,358)
Net cash used in operational activities (8,718,435) (37,869,310)
Investment activities

Repayment of loans issued 4,152,148 8,558,462
Returns from third party funding 2,473,184 8,839,764
Sale of property, plant and equipment and investment property - 5215915
Rewards received 659,861 1,521,165
Others - 223,930
Issuance of loans (5,586,844) (5,866,866)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property

and intangible assets (1,035,538) (390,072)
REPOQO transactions, net 10,023,059 (11,053,400)
Net cash flows from investing activities 10,685,870 7,048,898
Financial activities

Repayment of loans (8,000,000) (8,820,000)
Getting loans 6,500,000 -
Payment of share capital - 6,000,000
Net cash used in financial activities (1,500,000) (2,820,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash 467,435 (33,640,412)
Change in the allowance for expected credit losses (15,900) 44,539
The effect of exchange rate changes on money (4) (174,101)
Cash at the beginning of the period 69,727,029 103,497,003
Cash at the end of the period 70,178,560 69,727,029
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"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended December 31, 2024

Repurchased
equity Retained earnings/

thousand tenge Share capital instruments {(Uncovered loss) Total equity
Balance as of January 1, 2023 185,204,314 (6,392,998) (10,505,266) 168,306,050
Issue of shares 8,201,443  (14,658,540) - (6,457,097)
Adjustments to previous periods (54,188) - - (54,188)
Net income for the year - - 11,128,287 11,128,287
Other operations on own account

equity instruments - - (1,846,111)  (1,846,111)
Other operations - - 661,043 661,043
Balance as of December 31, 2023 193,351,569  (21,051,538) (562,047) 171,737,984
Issue of shares - 1,354,305 - 1,354,305
Net income for the year - - 8,000,351 8,000,351
Other operations with own

equity instruments - (2,658,867) - (2,658,867)
Other operations - 26,196 26,196
Balance as of December 31, 2024 193,351,569 (22,356,100) 7,464,500 178,459,969

en approved by the Group's management and signed on their

These consolidated financial statements have
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"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty"” JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC and its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”.

"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC (hereinafter referred to as the "Company") was initially
registered with the Ministry of Justice of the Republic of Kazakhstan on August 27, 2010. On October 8, 2018,
the Company was re-registered due to a change in name. Business identification code 100840016104.

The company is registered as a taxpayer by the Department of Justice of Almaty with the assignment of taxpayer
registration number 600400621639. The company is registered as a value added tax payer by the tax committee
of the Bostandyk district of Almaty, certificate No. 1202376 series 60001 dated October 8, 2018.

The actual and legal address of the Group: 050040, Republic of Kazakhstan, Almaty, Baizakov Street , 303,
Block B.

As of December 31, 2024 and the date of issuance of the consolidated financial statements, the sole participant
of the Group is the State Institution “Department of Entrepreneurship and Investments of Almaty City” (hereinafter
referred to as the “Shareholder”). The ultimate controlling party of the Group is the Akimat of Almaty City.

The Group operates in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The Group's assets and liabilities are located in the Republic
of Kazakhstan.

The Group's main activities are consulting on commercial activities and management, regulation and assistance
in the efficient conduct of economic activities, the formation of a regional stabilization fund and the implementation
of mechanisms for stabilizing prices of socially significant food products.

On February 28, 2025, Fitch Ratings (Dubai, UAE) affirmed the Group's foreign and national currency default
ratings at "BBB-" with a "Stable" outlook.

The following subsidiaries have been included in these consolidated financial statements:

Share of participation
December 31, December 31,
Company/ location Type of activity 2024 2023
Almaty Finance LLp/ Provision of loans for entrepreneurial purposes to 100% 100%
small and medium-sized businesses
(Kazakhstan)
"Industrial Zone Almaty" LLP/ Operational management of the Industrial Zone 100% 100%
activities
(Kazakhstan)
"Capital Construction Activities to organize the construction of residential 100% 100%
Enterprise of the Akimat of buildings by attracting funds from individuals and
Almaty" LLP/ (Kazakhstan) legal entities (including budget funds) for shared

participation in housing construction

Microfinance Organization Almaty LLP was created within the framework of the regional entrepreneurship
development program Almaty Business-2025. In order to support SMEs, MFO Almaty LLP provides preferential
lending to small and medium-sized businesses and is a subsidiary of Almaty Finance LLP with a share of
99.999999690%.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Declaration of Conformity

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and
interpretations issued by the International Accounting Interpretations Committee (“IAIC") of the IASB.

View Basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the initial recognition of financial instruments at fair value.

Going concern principles

The Group's consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which
contemplates the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities and liabilities in the normal course of business.

Therefore, the Group's management does not identify conditions or events that could significantly affect the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. These consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments that would be required if the Group were unable to continue as a going concern.

Basis for the preparation of consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements must be presented by a group of companies, including the parent company,
entities under its control and entities over which the Group has significant influence.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries
as of December 31, 2024. Control is exercised when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variability in returns
from its involvement with an investee, as well as the ability to influence those returns through the exercise of its
power over the investee.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as disclosed in
the accounting policies and notes to these consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Kazakhstani tenge and all monetary amounts are rounded
to the nearest thousand tenge, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis. Transactions and events are
recorded and included in the consolidated financial statements in the period to which they relate. The accrual
basis is achieved by recognising the results of business transactions, as well as events that are not the result of
the Group's business activities but affect its financial position, when they occur, regardless of when they are paid.

All elements of the consolidated financial statements are presented as line items in the accompanying
consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The
combination of several elements of the financial statements into one line item is made taking into account their
characteristics in the Group's operations.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The consolidated financial statements include all transactions and events that meet the definition of elements of
financial statements and the conditions for their recognition. The Group has reasonable assurance that any
economic benefit associated with an item will be received or lost, and the item has a cost or value that can be
measured reliably. The presentation and classification of items in the consolidated financial statements are
maintained from one period to the next.

Changes in accounting policies and data presentation procedures

The accounting policies adopted in preparing the consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
applied in preparing the Group’s consolidated annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2024.
The Group has not early adopted any other standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

3. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS

New and amended IFRS standards that came into effect this year:

Amendments to [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Related to
Supplier Financing Arrangements

The Group applied the amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures related to supplier financing arrangements for the first time in the current reporting period.

The amendments introduce a disclosure objective in IAS 7 that requires an entity to provide information about its
supplier financing arrangements that enables users of its financial statements to evaluate the effect of those
arrangements on the entity's liabilities and cash flows.

In addition, IFRS 7 was supplemented by a provision that supplier financing arrangements are included in the list
of factors requiring disclosure of information about liquidity concentration risk.

The amendments contain specific transitional provisions that are effective in the first annual reporting period in
which the Group first applies the amendments. Under these transitional provisions, an entity is not required to
disclose:

. comparative information for reporting periods prior to the first period in which the amendments are
applied;
. the information required by paragraphs of IAS 7:44H(b)( ii )-( iii ) at the beginning of the first reporting

period in which the entity first applies those amendments.

During the current year, the Group has adopted a number of amendments to IFRS standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), which are mandatory for application from 1 January 2024.
These amendments did nat have a significant impact on the disclosures presented or the amounts reported in
the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current
The Group first applied the amendments to IAS 1 issued in January 2020.

The amendments relate solely to the presentation of liabilities as current or non-current in the statement of
financial position and do not affect the recognition of assets, liabilities, income or expenses, or the disclosures
that are made about those items.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

3. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS (continued)

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights existing at
the end of the reporting period, rather than on the expectation that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. They also clarify that rights are considered to exist if the entity complies with covenants
at the end of the reporting period, and define settlement as the transfer of cash, equity instruments, other assets,
or services to the counterparty.

Amendments to IAS 1 Financial Reporting — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
The Group first applied the amendments to IAS 1 issued in November 2022.

The amendments state that only those covenants that an entity is required to comply with before or at the end of
the reporting period affect the entity's right to defer settlement of an obligation for at least twelve months after the
reporting date (and, accordingly, should be taken into account when classifying liabilities as current or non-
current). These covenants affect whether an entity has a corresponding right at the end of the reporting period
even if actual compliance with the covenant is assessed only after the reporting date (for example, if the covenant
relates to the entity's financial position at the reporting date but compliance is tested only subsequently).

The IASB also clarified that if an entity is required to comply with a covenant only after the reporting period, its
right to defer settlement of the liability for more than 12 months after the reporting date is not at risk. However, if
an entity's right to defer settlement of the liability is contingent on the entity satisfying covenants for twelve months
after the reporting period, the entity must disclose information that enables users of the financial statements to
understand the potential risk of early settlement of the liabilities. Such information should include: a description
of the covenants (their nature and timing of compliance); the carrying amount of the related liabilities; and factors
and circumstances that indicate potential difficulties in satisfying the covenants.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases — Lease Liabilities in Sale and Leaseback Transactions
The Group applied the amendments to IFRS 16 for the first time in the current reporting period.

The amendments to IFRS 16 introduce requirements for the subsequent measurement of lease liabilities in sale
and leaseback transactions that meet the sale recognition criteria in accordance with IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The amendments require the selling lessee to determine the lease payments or
revised lease payments so as to eliminate the recognition of a gain or loss relating to any retained right to use
the asset after the commencement date of the lease.

The amendments do not affect the gain or loss recognised by a seller-lessee on the partial or complete
termination of a lease. Without the requirements, a seller-lessee might recognise a gain on the right of use
retained solely due to the restatement of the lease liability (for example, due to a change in the terms of the
lease). This is particularly relevant in the case of sale-leaseback transactions involving variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate.

As part of the amendments, the IASB also amended one of the illustrative examples in IFRS 16 and added a new
example that shows the subsequent measurement of assets and liabilities in sale and leaseback transactions
that include variable lease payments. The examples also clarify that the liability arising from a sale and leaseback
that qualifies as a sale in accordance with IFRS 15 is a lease liability.

The amendments are applied retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8 to sale and leaseback transactions entered
into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

3. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS (continued)

New and revised IFRS standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial statements, the Group has not adopted the following
new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to IAS 21 Restrictions on Currency Convertibility
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accounts: Disclosures

The Group's management does not expect that the application of these standards will have a material impact on
the Group's consolidated financial statements in future reporting periods, except in the following circumstances.

Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates — Limitations on Currency
Convertibility

The amendments clarify how to assess whether a currency is convertible and how to determine the exchange
rate if it is nof.

Under the amendments, a currency is considered convertible into another currency if the entity can obtain the
other currency within a time frame that allows for normal administrative delay and through a market or exchange
mechanism in which the transaction creates enforceable rights and liabilities.

An entity evaluates the convertibility of a currency at a particular point in time and for a particular purpose. If the
entity can obtain no more than an insignificant amount of another currency at the assessment date for that
purpose, the currency is considered inconvertible.

The assessment of convertibility is based on the entity's ability to obtain another currency, rather than on its
intention or decision to make an exchange.

If the currency is not convertible, the entity shall estimate the appropriate spot rate at the measurement date. The
objective of estimating the spot rate is to determine an exchange rate that reflects the price level at which an
orderly transaction could be effected between market participants in the current economic environment.

The amendments do not prescribe a specific method for measuring the spot rate, but an entity may use an
unadjusted observable exchange rate or another measurement method. Examples of observable rates include:

. a spot rate for a purpose other than that for which convertibility is assessed;

. the first exchange rate at which an organization was able to obtain another currency after convertibility
was restored.

When using another valuation method, an entity may use any observable exchange rate (for example, rates
transacted in markets or through mechanisms that do not create enforceable rights and liabilities) and adjust that
rate as necessary to achieve the objective of estimating the spot rate.

If an entity measures spot rates in a currency non-convertibility environment, it shall disclose information that
enables users of the financial statements to understand how the lack of convertibility affects or could affect the
entity's financial performance, financial position and cash flows.
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3. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS (continued)

The amendments include a new appendix to IAS 21 that provides guidance on applying the new requirements,
as well as illustrative examples to demonstrate their application in hypothetical situations.

The IASB also made consequential changes to IFRS 1 to align it with the revised version of IAS 21 in relation to
the assessment of convertibility.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with earlier application
permitted. Retrospective application of the amendments is not permitted; instead, entities must follow specific
transitional provisions.

The Group's management expects that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the future.

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, leaving most of the requirements of IAS 1 unchanged. The new standard adds additional
requirements. In addition, some items from IAS 1 have been transferred to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. There have also
been minor changes to IAS 7 and IAS 33 Earnings per Share.

IFRS 18 introduces new requirements:

. present certain categories and subtotals in the income statement;
. disclose management reporting metrics (MPM) in the notes to the financial statements;
. improve the principles of aggregation and disaggregation of information.

An entity shall apply IFRS 18 for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier application
permitted. The amendments to IAS 7 and IAS 33 and the revised IAS 8 and IFRS 7 are effective when IFRS 18
is applied. IFRS 18 requires retrospective application, except for transitional provisions as provided.

The Group's management expects that the application of these amendments may have an impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements in the future.

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accounts: Disclosures

IFRS 19 provides an option for qualifying subsidiaries to apply reduced disclosure requirements when preparing
financial statements in accordance with IFRS.

A subsidiary is entitied to abbreviated disclosures if it does not have publicly available financial statements or if
its ultimate or intermediate parent prepares consolidated financial statements that comply with IFRS and are
available for public use.

The application of IFRS 19 is voluntary for such subsidiaries and regulates the range of information to be
disclosed.
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3. NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS (continued)

An entity may apply IFRS 19 if, at the end of the reporting period:

. it is a subsidiary (including an intermediate parent company);
. it does not have public reporting;
. its ultimate or intermediate parent company prepares consolidated financial statements that comply with

IFRS and are available for public use.
A subsidiary is considered to have public reporting if:

. its debt or equity instruments are traded on a public market or it is in the process of issuing such
instruments for trading on a public market (on a national or foreign stock exchange, over-the-counter market,
including local and regional markets);

or

. it holds assets in trust on behalf of a broad group of third parties as one of its principal activities (e.g.,
banks, credit unions, insurance companies, broker/dealers, mutual funds, and investment banks typically meet
this criterion).

Entities that are eligible to apply IFRS 19 may apply it in consolidated, separate or individual financial statements.
An intermediate parent that does not apply IFRS 19 in its consolidated financial statements may apply it in its
separate financial statements.

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with earlier application
permitted. If an entity applies IFRS 19 earlier than IFRS 18, it must use the modified set of disclosure
requirements in the appendix to IFRS 19. If an entity applies IFRS 19 earlier than the amendments to IAS 21, it
is not required to apply the currency inconvertibility disclosure requirements in IFRS 19,

The Group's management does not intend to apply IFRS 19 for the purpose of preparing consolidated financial
statements.

The above amendments did not have a material impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Classification of assets and liabilities into current and non-current

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group presents assets and liabilities based on their
classification as current (current) and non-current. An asset is current (current) if:

» itis intended to be realized or is intended for sale or consumption in the normal course of the operating
cycle;

« ltis intended mainly for trading purposes;

« itis expected to be implemented within 12 (twelve) months after the end of the reporting period;

- it represents cash or its equivalents, except where there are restrictions on its exchange or use to settle
liabilities for at least 12 (twelve) months after the end of the reporting period.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current (current) if:

« itis expected to be repaid within the normal operating cycle;

- itis held primarily for trading purposes;

«  but is subject to repayment within 12 (twelve) months after the end of the reporting period; or

« the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12
(twelve) months after the end of the reporting period.

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

Fair value assessment

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability occurs:

= either in the principal market for the asset or liability;
= or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most favourable market for the asset or liability.

The Group must have access to the principal or most favourable market.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best interests. Measuring the fair
value of a non-financial asset takes into account

- the ability of a market participant to generate economic benefits either through the best and most efficient
use of an asset

» in the most efficient manner, or as a result of its sale to another market participant who will use this asset
in the best and most efficient manner.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to permit fair value measurement, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities whose fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are classified within
the fair value hierarchy described below, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 - quoted market prices in an active market for identical assets or liabilities (without any
adjustments);

» Level 2 - valuation models in which the inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement and that
are at the lowest level of the hierarchy are directly or indirectly observable in the market;

- Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that are significant to the fair value
measurement are not observable in the market.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Group has classified assets and liabilities based on their nature,
inherent characteristics and risks and the applicable level in the fair value hierarchy as described above.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and accounting

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes costs directly attributable to the purchase of the asset. The cost of assets manufactured or
constructed by commercial means includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, as well as the costs of dismantling
and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and capitalised borrowing costs.

If an item of property, plant and equipment consists of separate components that have different useful lives, each
of them is accounted for as a consolidated item {major component) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by comparing the proceeds
from its disposal with its carrying amount and is recognized on a net basis in the line “other income” or “other
expenses” in net income or loss.

Subsequent costs

Costs associated with replacing a part (major component) of an item of property, plant and equipment increase
the carrying amount of that item if it is probable that the Group will receive future economic benefits associated
with that part and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is written off.
Expenses for current repairs and maintenance of property, plant and equipment are recognized in income and
expenses when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful life of the asset until its residual value.
Expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment;

Useful service life, years

Buildings and structures 25-50
Computers and office equipment 4-8
Vehicles 4-8
Other property, plant and equipment 3-4

The expected useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are analyzed as of each reporting
date.

Investment property

Property held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business, for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is recognized at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The
cost of acquired investment property includes purchase costs and other purchase-related costs.

The actual cost of real estate objects erected (built) by own efforts includes the cost of the real estate on the date
of completion of construction. Equipment and fittings that are an integral part of the building are considered part
of the investment real estate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property is depreciated in accordance with the principles applicable to property, plant and equipment.
Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that the carrying value of its long-
lived assets may be impaired. If any such indication is identified, an assessment is made of whether the
recoverable amount of the assets may have decreased (if any). If it is impossible to estimate the recoverable
amount for an individual asset, the Group determines the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Calculation of the amount to be reimbursed

The recoverable amount of an asset is determined as the higher of its value in use and the asset's fair value less
costs to sell it. In assessing an asset's value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

The recoverable amount of assets that do not independently generate cash flows is determined as part of the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which these assets belong.

Reversal of impairment losses

A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if

Investments in associated companies

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group's investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the
investment is subsequently adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the associate
or joint venture that arise after the purchase date.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and assessment

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as those subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets
at initial recognition depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset and the Group's
business model for managing those assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied a practical expedient, the Group initially measures financial assets at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied a practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined in accordance with IFRS 15.

For a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, the contractual terms of the asset must give rise to cash flows that are “solely payments of principal and
interest” on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is made at the instrument level. The Group’s
business model for managing its financial assets describes the way in which the Group manages its financial
assets to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether the cash flows will result from collecting
the contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery of the assets within the timeframe established by
law or in accordance with the rules accepted in a particular market (regular way trading) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e. on the date the Group commits to buy or sell the asset.

Follow-up assessment
For the purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into four categories:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost (debt instruments);

« financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income with subsequent
reclassification of accumulated gains and losses (debt instruments);

« financial assets designated at the discretion of the entity as measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, without subsequent reclassification of accumulated gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments);

» financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows;

- the contractual terms of a financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment requirements. Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired. The Group classifies trade receivables and loans issued as financial assets
measured at amortised cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following
conditions are met:;

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose purpose is both to collect contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial asset;

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. For debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income, foreign exchange gains and
impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
measured in the same way as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. Any remaining changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. On derecognition, the cumulative amount of
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. The
Group does not have debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income (equity instruments) at the
discretion of the Group

The Group may irrevocably elect, at initial recognition, to designate investments in equity instruments as
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if they meet the definition of equity in IAS 32
Financial Assets: Presentation and are not held for trading. This designation is made on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. Gains and losses on such financial assets are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The category of financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss includes financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets
mandatorily measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling in the near term.

Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets whose cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, regardless of the business
model used. Notwithstanding the criteria for classifying debt instruments as measured at amortised cost or fair
value through other comprehensive income as described above, the Group may, at initial recognition, designate
debt instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value, with net changes in their fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Termination of recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) if:

+ the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

= The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows to a third party in full and without material delay, under a "pass-through"
arrangement;

»  The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset, or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it assesses whether and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. If the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, nor has it
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement. In this case, the Group also recognises a corresponding liability. The transferred asset
and the corresponding liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and liabilities retained by the
Group. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group might
be required to pay.

Derecognition due to a material modification of the terms of the instrument

The Group derecognises a financial asset (loans issued) if the terms of the contract are renegotiated so that, in
substance , it becomes a new loan, and the difference is recognised as a gain or loss on derecognition before
any impairment loss is recognised.

At initial recognition, loans are classified in Stage 1 for the purposes of measuring expected credit losses (ECLs),
unless the originated loan is considered a purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial asset.

In assessing whether to derecognise financial assets due to a material modification, the Group considers, among
other things, the following factors:

= change of loan currency;

« adding a share component;

= change of counterparty;

- whether the modification results in the instrument no longer meeting the SPPI test criteria.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender but with substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified.
For financial liabilities, the terms are considered substantially different if the present value of the cash flows under
the new terms, including fees paid less fees received, discounted at the original effective interest rate (EIR),
differs by at least 10% from the discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial
liability.

If the modification does not result in a significant change in the cash flows, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate , the Group
recognises a gain or loss on the modification (for financial assets before any impairment loss is recognised).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Expected credit losses are recognised in two stages. For financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, an allowance is created for credit losses expected to arise from
defaults within the next 12 months (12-month ECL). For financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, an allowance is created for credit losses expected over the remaining life of
the financial instrument, regardless of the timing of defaults (lifetime ECL).

For cash and cash equivalents, the Group calculates 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represent expected credit losses that arise from
defaults on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 manths after the reporting date. However, if the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due. A financial asset is also considered to be in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may conclude that a financial asset is in default if internal
or external information indicates that it is unlikely that the Group will collect all outstanding contractual payments,
without taking into account credit enhancements held by the Group.

Grouping of financial assets that are assessed on a group basis

When assessing ECL on a collective basis for a group of similar assets, the Group applies the same principles
for assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Depending on the factors below, the Group assesses ECL either on an individual or collective basis.
The types of assets for which the Group assesses ECL on an individual basis include the following:

- all assets of Stage 3 regardless of the type of financial assets;
» large and unigue instruments in the loan portfolio (more than 5% of the total loan portfolio).

The types of assets for which the Group measures ECL on a collective basis include the following:

- small and standard assets within the portfolio of loans to individuals and legal entities.

The Group combines these financial assets into homogeneous groups depending on their internal and external
characteristics, as indicated below:

- type of product;

- geographic location of the borrower;
= use of credit funds;

« the value of a financial instrument.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Based on the process described above, the Group groups financial assets as follows:

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

PSKO

At initial recognition of a loan, the Group recognises an impairment allowance equal to 12-
month ECL. Stage 1 also includes loans originated for which the credit risk has improved to
such an extent that they have been transferred out of Stage 2.

If the credit risk on loans has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
recognises an impairment allowance equal to lifetime ECL. Stage 2 also includes loans
originated for which the credit risk has improved to such an extent that they are transferred
out of Stage 3.

Loans that are credit-impaired. The Group recognises an impairment allowance equal to
lifetime ECL.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets are those that were credit-
impaired at initial recognition. When POCI financial assets are initially recognised, they are
stated at fair value and subsequently interest income is recognised based on the EIR adjusted
for credit risk. An allowance for ECL is recognised or derecognised only to the extent that
there has been a change in the amount of expected credit losses.

If the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in full or in part, the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset must be reduced. Such a reduction is treated as a (partial) derecognition of the

financial asset.

Calculating Expected Credit Losses

The Group calculates ECL based on two probability-weighted scenarios (the “base” and “worst case” scenarios)
to estimate expected cash shortfalls, which are discounted using the EIR or its approximation. The cash shortfall
is the difference between the cash flows contractually due to the entity and the cash flows the entity expects to

receive.

The mechanics of calculating the ECL are described below, and the main elements are as follows:

Probability of Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the probability of a default occurring over a given

Default (PD)

Exposure to
default (EAD)

Loss Given
Default (LGD)

time period. A default can only occur at a certain point in time during the period under
consideration if the asset has not been derecognized and is still part of the portfolio.

The amount exposed at default (EAD) is an estimate of the amount exposed to default at a
future date, taking into account expected changes in that amount after the reporting date,
including payments of principal and interest, contractually or otherwise, repayments of loans
issued and interest accrued as a result of late payments.

Loss Given Default (LGD) is an estimate of the loss that would result from a default occurring
at a given point in time. LGD is calculated as the difference between the contractual cash
flows and the cash flows that the lender expects to receive, including from the sale of
collateral. This figure is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

When assessing the ECL, the Group considers two scenarios: baseline and unfavourable. The purpose of using
several scenarios is to model the non-linear impact of assumptions about macroeconomic factors on the ECL.
The “baseline” scenario has a probability of 75%, and the “unfavourable” scenario has a probability of 25%. For
each of them, its own PD, EAD and LGD indicators are established.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Where appropriate, the multiple scenario assessment also takes into account the manner in which defaulted
loans are expected to be recovered, including the likelihood that credit quality will improve, as well as the value
of collateral and the amount that could be realized from the sale of the asset.

The maximum period for which expected credit losses are calculated is the contractual life of the financial
instrument, unless the Group has a legal right to call the instrument earlier.

Impairment losses and their recoveries are recognised and presented separately from modification gains or
losses, which are recognised as an adjustment to the gross carrying amount of financial assets.

Forecast information

In its models for determining ECL, the Group uses a wide range of forecast information as input economic data:

= GDP growth;
« inflation;
« oil price.

The inputs and models used in calculating ECL do not always reflect all market characteristics at the date of
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays are
sometimes made as timing adjustments if such differences are material.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and assessment

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, accounts payable or derivatives designated at the Group's discretion as hedging instruments in
an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value, less (in the case of
accounts payable) directly attributable transaction costs. The Group's financial liabilities include loans, trade and
other payables, and finance lease liabilities.

Follow-up assessment

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows: Financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss The category “financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss” includes
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated at initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred with a view to repurchase in
the near term.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. Financial liabilities designated at initial recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss are classified in this category at the date of initial recognition only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are met.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Group does not have any financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Termination of recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the liability is extinguished, cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, the exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in their carrying amounts is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss or in other equity.

Offseftting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and presented net in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a currently enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis and to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventory

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Net realizable value
is based on an estimate of the realizable value less all estimated costs associated with completing, marketing,
selling, and delivering the product.

The cost of inventory includes all costs of purchase, processing and other costs, including non-refundable taxes
and duties, incurred in bringing the inventory to its current condition and location.

The write-off of inventories to the cost of services and to period expenses is carried out using the weighted
average cost method.

Cash and their equivalents
Cash in the consolidated statement of financial position includes cash in banks and current bank deposits.
Restricted funds

Cash reflected in the account of the Treasury Department for the city of Almaty of the Treasury Committee of the
Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan are allocated for the purpose of implementing the investment
projects "Communal Bus Depot No. 3 of Almaty" and " Simulation Educational and Methodological Center for
Training the Population and Rescuers in Almaty". Cash reflected in this account can be used exclusively to make
payments under investment projects. If cash is in any way restricted in use for a period of up to 12 (twelve)
months from the reporting date, such cash is classified as current assets and disclosed accordingly in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. If cash is restricted in use for a period of more than 12 (twelve) months
from the reporting date, such cash is reflected in non-current assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Labor costs and related deductions

Expenses for wages, pension confributions, social security contributions, paid annual leave and sick leave, and
bonuses are accrued as the relevant work is performed by the Group's employees. On behalf of its employees,
the Group pays pension and severance benefits as required by the legal requirements of the Republic of
Kazakhstan. In accordance with the requirements of the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Group
makes payments in the amount of 10% of employees' wages as deductions to the unified state accumulative
pension fund.

When employees retire, the Group's financial liabilities cease, and all subsequent payments to retired employees
are made by the unified state accumulative pension fund. In accordance with the Law of the Republic of
Kazakhstan "On Compulsory Social Health Insurance", the Group transfers the compulsory social health
insurance and compulsory social health insurance contributions from employees' income on a monthly basis.

Lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the arrangement constitutes or contains a lease, i.e., the
Group determines whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a specified
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a tenant

The Group applies the current lease recognition exemption to its current leases (i.e., leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less at the inception date and that do not contain an option to purchase the underlying
asset). The Group also applies the low-value lease recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low
value. Lease payments for current leases and low-value leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the inception date of the lease (i.e., the
date the underlying asset becomes available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, as adjusted for the remeasurement of the lease liability. The
initial cost of right-of-use assets comprises the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred
and lease payments made on or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The group as a landlord

Leases under which the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset
are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease are included in the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group's activities involve the provision of services related to its activities, which may include services related
to the development of investment projects, the sale of other reserves and/or services, which may include services
related to the implementation of trust management.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services is transferred to the
customer and is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. The Group has concluded that it acts as a principal in contracts it enters
into that involve revenue because the Group controls the goods or services before they are transferred to the
customer.

The Group's contracts with customers for the sale of goods and services generally involve a single performance
obligation. The Group has concluded that revenue should be recognised at the point in time when control of the
assets is transferred to the customer, which typically occurs when the goods are delivered and the services are
rendered.

The Group does not have the impact of variable consideration because the contract does not include other
promises that could constitute separate performance liabilities (for example, warranties, customer loyalty
rewards) to which a portion of the transaction price would need to be allocated. The Group generally receives
payments from customers after the goods and services are provided. In rare cases, the Group receives current
advance payments. As a result of using the practical expedient in IFRS 15, the Group does not adjust the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component if, at contract inception, the
Group expects that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer and the
customer’s payment for that good or service will be one year or less.

Assets under the contract

A contract asset is the Group's right to receive consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to a
customer. If the Group transfers goods or services to a customer before the customer pays the consideration or
before the consideration becomes due and payable, a contract asset is recognised for the contingent
consideration received.

Trade receivables

Accounts receivable represent the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional (i.e. the time only
determines when the consideration becomes due). The accounting policies for financial assets are discussed in
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

Liabilities under the conftract

A contract liability is an obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group will receive (or
has received) consideration from the customer. If the customer pays consideration before the Group transfers
the goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or when the
payment becomes due (whichever occurs first). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
satisfies its liabilities under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from the right of return

The Group does not have a contractual right of return of goods by the customer, and accordingly there are no
assets and liabilities in relation to the right of return of goods by the customer.

Recognition of interest income

Interest income on all financial instruments measured at amortised cost (hereinafter referred to as "AC") and
financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss (hereinafter referred to as “FVPL”) is calculated
using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest income on interest-bearing financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) is calculated using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate (EIR) is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR (and hence the amortised cost of the asset) is calculated taking into account any discount or premium
received on purchase, fees and costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Group recognises interest income
using a rate of return that is the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan.
Consequently, it recognises the impact of potentially different interest rates applied at different stages and other
life cycle characteristics of the instrument. If the cash flow expectations of a financial asset are revised for reasons
other than credit risk, the adjustment is recognised in the statement of financial position as a positive or negative
change in the carrying amount of the asset and as an increase or decrease in interest income. The amount of
the adjustment is subsequently amortised and recognised in profit or loss as interest income. The Group
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, other than credit-
impaired financial assets.

For a financial asset that becomes credit-impaired and therefore falls within Stage 3, the Group calculates interest
income by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost of that financial asset. If the financial asset
defaults and is no longer credit-impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income based on gross cost.
Interest income on financial assets that are mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
using the contractual interest rate in Net gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense includes current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in income and
expenses except to the extent that it relates to transactions recognized in equity, in which case it is also
recognized in equity.

Current income tax is the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year, plus any adjustments to the
amount of income tax liability for prior years.

Deferred tax is determined using the balance sheet method by identifying temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be available
against which the asset can be reduced. The amount of deferred tax assets is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and if the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable item and to the same tax
authority.

Related party transactions

In accordance with I1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the Group discloses the nature of the related party
relationships, as well as information about those transactions and outstanding balances necessary to understand
the potential impact of those relationships on the consolidated financial statements.

In these consolidated financial statements, parties are considered to be related if they have the ability to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making operating or financial decisions. In
determining whether parties are related, consideration is given to the substance of the relationship, and not
merely the legal form of the relationship.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized in consolidated financial statements. When the realization of income is
actually possible, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

Uncertain tax positions

Management reassesses the Group’s uncertain tax positions at the end of each reporting period. Liabilities are
recognised for those income tax positions that management assesses are more likely than not to result in
additional tax liability if the positions are challenged by the taxation authorities. This assessment is made based
on the interpretation of tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period and any known court rulings or other decisions on similar issues. Liabilities for fines, penalties and taxes
other than income tax are recognised based on management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Events after the reporting date

Events occurring after the end of the reporting period that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events occurring after the
end of the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements if they are material.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions at the end of the reporting period that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. However, uncertainty about these
estimates and assumptions could cause outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability underlying those estimates and assumptions.




"Social and Entrepreneurial Corporation "Almaty" JSC

Notes to the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below. The Group’'s assumptions and estimates are based on the inputs
available to it at the time of preparing the consolidated financial statements.

However, current circumstances and assumptions about the future may change due to market changes or
circumstances beyond the Group's control. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions as they occur.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group has made the following judgments that have a significant effect on the amount and timing of revenue
recognition from contracts with customers:

Identification of liabilities to be fulfilled in contracts for the provision of trust management services and services
for the lease of trade pavilions and equipment;

The Group found that the contract for the supply of goods contained one performance obligation — the obligation
to deliver the goods.

Revenue from retail premises and equipment provided under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term and is included in income in the consolidated statement of income due to its operating
nature.

Impairment losses on financial assets

Estimating impairment losses for all categories of financial assets requires judgment, including estimating the
amount and timing of future cash flows and the value of collateral in determining impairment losses and assessing
whether significant increases in credit risk have occurred. Such estimates depend on a number of factors,
changes in which could result in different amounts of impairment allowances.

The Group’'s ECL calculations are the result of complex models that incorporate a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the selection of input variables and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL
calculation models that are considered judgments and estimates include the following:

« the criteria used by the Group to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk such
that the impairment allowance for financial assets should be measured at an amount equal fo lifetime
ECL, and a qualitative assessment;

+ grouping of financial assets into groups whereby ECLs for them are assessed on a group basis;

- development of models for calculating the ECL, including various formulas and selection of initial data;

» identifying relationships between macroeconomic scenarios and economic data, as well as the impact
on PD, EAD and LGD indicators;

- selection of forecast macroeconomic scenarios and their weighting taking into account probability to
obtain economic inputs for ECL assessment models.

The Group's policy is to regularly review models taking into account actual losses and adjust them if necessary.
Classification and fair value measurement of investment property

Investment property includes land, buildings and retail premises that are neither used for the Group's operations
nor sold in the course of its operations, but are held primarily to earn rental income and capital appreciation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Fair
value is determined based on recent transactions with properties of similar characteristics and location.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment

The Group estimates the remaining useful lives of property, plant and equipment at least at each financial year-
end and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as changes in estimates
in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Estimates and Errors. These estimates can have a
material effect on the amounts of the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. At the reporting date, management
assessed the remaining useful lives of property, plant and equipment and concluded that no revision of the useful
lives of the equipment is required.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable temporary
differences will be recovered and the commercial nature of the expense. Determining the amount of deferred tax
assets to recognize in the financial statements based on the likely timing and amount of future taxable profits and
future tax planning strategies requires significant management judgment.

The Group recognises tax liabilities based on the assessment of whether additional taxes will be due. In cases
where the final amounts of taxes withheld differ from the amounts initially recognised, such differences will affect
the deferred tax expense of the period in which such tax expense is incurred.

Taxation

In assessing tax risks, management considers as possible liabilities known areas of tax positions that the Group
would not be able to challenge, or does not believe it would be able to challenge, when assessed by the tax
authorities. Such determinations involve significant judgment and are subject to change as a result of changes
in tax laws and regulations, determination of expected tax revenue outcomes and the outcome of tax audits by
the tax authorities.

Comparative information

When the financial statements are presented in a new format during the year, comparative information is adjusted
to reflect the new presentation.

As a result of the reclassification of the relevant items, the following amounts in the Group's consolidated financial
statements were revised:

- The expense of the legal claim provision was reclassified from administrative expenses to other
income/expenses, net.
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and  Machines and
thousand tenge Land constructions equipment Vehicles Others Total
Initial cost
As of January 1, 2023 1,173,452 1,455,017 254,242 35,667 364,756 3,283,134
Receipt 75,293 9,125,273 1,220,570 15,500 50,331 10,486,967
Disposals - (683,599) (839) - (27,812) (712,250)
As of December 31, 2023 1,248,745 9,896,691 1,473,973 51,167 387,275 13,057,851
Receipt 352,369 1,057,868 48,592 - 61,368 1,520,197
Transfers from inventory and
work in progress - - - - 135 135
Reclassification - E (67,524) 67,524 - -
Disposals - (839,286) (36,461) - (23,096) (898,843)
As of December 31, 2024 1,601,114 10,115,273 1,418,580 118,691 425,682 13,679,340
Accumulated depreciation
As of January 1, 2023 - (165,183) (98,781) (17,965) (193,421) (475,350)
Accrued s (396,408) (81,087) (5,150) (56,023) (538,668)
Disposals - 20,640 686 - 27,246 48,572
As of December 31, 2023 - (540,951) (179,182) (23,115) (222,198) (965,446)
Accrued - (261,113) (60,386) (7,389) (71,735) (400,623)
Reclassification - - 3,904 (3,904) - -
Disposals - 37,013 13,113 - 21,488 71,614
As of December 31, 2024 - (765,051) (222,551) (34,408) (272,445) (1,294,455)
Carrying amount
As of December 31, 2023 1,248,745 9,355,740 1,294,791 28,052 165,077 12,092,405
As of December 31, 2024 1,601,114 9,350,222 1,196,029 84,283 153,237 12,384,885
6. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Buildings and
thousand tenge Land constructions Others Total
Initial cost
As of January 1, 2023 64,886,188 981,590 38,602 65,906,380
Receipts - 152,703 - 152,703
Disposals (59,730,912) (206,155) - (59,937,067)
As of December 31, 2023 5,155,276 928,138 38,602 6,122,016
Receipts - 1,229,424 - 1,229,424
Disposals - (71,000) (35,356) (106,356)
As of December 31, 2024 5,155,276 2,086,562 3,246 7,245,084
Accumulated depreciation
As of January 1, 2023 - (171,280) (27,765) (199,045)
Reversal of impairment loss - 61,096 - 61,096
As of January 01, 2023 after restoration - (110,184) (27,765) (137,949)
Accrued for the year - (49,586) (2,608) (52,194)
Disposals - 18,355 - 18,355
As of December 31, 2023 - (141,415) (30,373) (171,788)
Rcoversal o impanmieii 1055 - (4D, 109) (491) (45,600)
As of December 31, 2023 after restoration - (186,524) (30,864) (217,388)
Accrued for the period - (62,080) (2,258) (64,338)
Disposals - 17,200 30,196 47,396
As of December 31, 2024 - (231,404) (2,926) (234,330)
Carrying amount
As of December 31, 2023 5,155,276 741,614 7,738 5,904,628
As of December 31, 2024 5,155,276 1,855,158 320 7,010,754

The Group's investment property includes rental property located in Aimaty. The fair value of the investment
property as of December 31, 2024 approximates its carrying amount.
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7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Long term part

Loans issued to third parties 2,163,076 388,000
Lending to small and medium businesses 21,096,558 15,590,749
Discount (347,736) (58,704)
Reserve for expected credit losses (240,897) (251,674)
Total non-current financial assets 22,671,001 15,668,371
Current part

Loans issued to third parties 2575539 2,830,508
Lending to small and medium businesses 236,575 95,652
Penalty, fine, forfeit 13,395 -
Discount (517,217) -
Reserve for expected credit losses (108,501) (168,000)
Total current financial assets 2,199,791 2,758,160
Total financial assets 24,870,792 18,426,531

Loans issued to third parties

As part of the measures to contain prices for socially important food products, provided for by the Decree of the
Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Group provides current loans with an interest rate of 0.01%.

Lending to small and medium businesses

The group provides loans for business purposes to small and medium-sized businesses in Almaty, with a

preferential interest rate of 2%-12% per annum.

The Group provides loans to clients with collateral in the form of guarantees, as well as real estate, the value of

which is determined by an independent appraisal company.

The movement of financial assets is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Nominal value and discount

On January 1 18,846,205 17,976,762
Provision of principal debt 16,667,508 13,999,276
Repayment of principal debt (9,530,349) (13,191,594)
Fines 7,238 -
Interest accrued 958,495 867,339
Interest received (927,607) (861,532)
Taxes and payments (3086) (57)
Other (23,151) (5,493)
Discount (963,264) -
Amortization of discount 185,421 61,504
At the end of the period 25,220,190 18,846,205

The movement of the reserve for expected credit losses on financial assets is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
On January 1 (419,674) (503,338)
Accrued (33,167) (64,224)
Restored 103,443 147,888
At the end of the period (349,398) (419,674)
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8. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Non-current accounts payable of customers and clients 67,937,135 70,919,978
Allowance for impairment losses on non-current receivables (7,115,927)  (6,907,692)
Discount (13,327,163) (20,509,548)

47,494,045 43,502,738

Non-current accounts receivable are represented by counterparties’ accounts payable for assets sold in
installments, as well as investment contracts.

In 2020, an investment agreement was concluded with Rusalding Line LLP for the implementation of a project
for the construction of a multi-apartment residential complex at the intersection of Al-Farabi Avenue - Rozybakiyev
Street - Gagarin Avenue as part of the renovation of the housing stock of Almaty. On July 3, 2021, an additional
agreement was concluded and investments were provided in the amount of 5,260,000 thousand tenge on the
terms of 14% of investment income from the attracted ruble loan of Sovcombank PJSC . The Group accrued a
provision for impairment losses for the full amount.

In 2022, an investment agreement was concluded with RBest Home LLP and investments were provided in the
amount of 1,200,000 thousand tenge with an investment income interest rate of 16% for the construction of the
Four Seasons Villa cottage village with a repayment period no later than June 30, 2022. The Group decided to
create an impairment reserve for the full amount of debt minus the collateral, due to the violation of the investment
repayment period.

In 2023, project agreements were concluded with Ask Prestige LLP, Sensata Construction LLP and
KazSpetsEnergoService LLP for the development of the polycentric infrastructure of Almaty for the construction
of a new district under the Eastern Gate project, located in the Turksib district, Kairat microdistrict, for a period
up to 2027-2028. As part of this project, the Group transferred land plots, and the counterparties ensure the
implementation of the project.

Non-current receivables were discounted to their net present value, reflecting the fair value of the debt, which is
the present value of expected cash flows at a rate of 16.75%, the discount was recognized in the amount of
25,616,053 thousand tenge as part of finance expenses in 2023, and its amortization was recognized as part of
finance income, which for 2024 amounted to 7,182,385 thousand tenge (for 2023 it amounted to 5,157,381
thousand tenge).

Current accounts receivable are shown in the table below:

thousand tenge 31.12.2024  31.12.2023
Current accounts receivable from customers and clients 4,951,333 394,354
Property rental arrears 31,146 28,438
Land lease arrears 30,779 14,834
Outstanding claims 180,356 224,665
Other remuneration receivable - 1,359
Other current accounts receivable 1,320,016 932,927
Reserve for doubtful claims (1,354,594) (1,142,915)
5,159,036 453,662

The movement in the allowance for expected credit losses on accounts receivable is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
On January 1 (8,050,607) (10,488,312)
Accrual/(Recovery) (419,914) 2,439,212
Write-off -

As of December 31
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9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Construction in progress 2,078,413 3,267,380
Land plots (investments) 6,466,268 7,113,504
Reserve for impairment of contract costs (2,925,949) (2,502,673)

Reserve for impairment of investments

(173,998)
5,618,732 7,704,213

The movement in the provision for impairment of other non-current assets is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
On January 1 (2,925,949) (3,074,804)
Recovery - 148,855
As of December 31 (2,925,949)  (2,925,949)

10. INVENTORY

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Apartments and houses 30,042,824 279,786
Parking lots 966,688 952,966
Non-residential premises 599,967 959,950
Design and estimate documentation 62,691 31,258
Other materials 99,303 58,449
Construction in progress of residential buildings 37,964 8,253,989
Land plots and rights to purchase land plots intended for use in housing

construction projects 1,780 37,964
Allowance for impairment (81,937) (81,966)

31,729,280 10,492,396

11. ADVANCES ISSUED AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Advances issued for the construction of apartments 25,114,245 7,667,524
Advances issued for the supply of supplies and provision of services 1,389,366 1,136,355
Current tax assets 545,819 471,667
Security deposits for participation in the tender 415,315 -
Other 8,198 3,033
Minus: reserve (100,900) (123,675)

27,372,043 9,154,904

12. REPO ASSET

As at December 31, 2024, there were outstanding reverse repurchase agreements between the Group and BCC
INVEST - SUBSIDIARY OF BANK CENTERCREDIT JSC in the amount of 7,248,580 thousand tenge (December
31, 2023: 11,728,105 thousand tenge). The subject of these agreements were coupon bonds of Kazakhstan
Sustainability Fund JSC, government securities of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan, with an
annual interest rate from 2.5% - 14%.
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13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

thousand tenge 31.12.2024  31.12.2023
Cash in bank accounts in tenge 5,243,946 2,841,591
Cash in deposit accounts in tenge 32,462,183 18,102,266
Cash in treasury accounts 32,502,096 48,796,937
Reserve for expected credit losses (29,665) (13,765)

70,178,560 69,727,029
Restricted funds 1,611,590 1,628,199
Impairment of restricted cash (1,611,590) (1,628,199)

70,178,560 69,727,029

Cash in treasury accounts are represented by cash in the RSE "Department of Treasury for the city of Aimaty of
the Treasury Committee of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan". Cash was allocated for the
purpose of implementing 5 (five) investment projects. Cash reflected in this account is limited in use and can be
used exclusively for making payments on investment budget projects developed within the framework of the
Financial and Economic Justification.

Cash in deposit accounts are represented by deposits placed in second-tier banks of the Republic of Kazakhstan
for a period of up to three months at rates of 14.75% - 15.25% (2023: 14.5% - 15.25%).

Restricted funds are represented by deposits previously placed in KazlnvestBank JSC and Bank Astana- finance
JSC. In accordance with the Resolution of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 291 dated
December 26, 2016, a decision was made to revoke the license of KazlnvestBank JSC to conduct banking and
other operations and activities in the securities market. The Group's funds placed in JSC KazlnvestBank
amounted to 2,000,000 thousand tenge. '

On May 17, 2017, an agreement was concluded on the one-time transfer of assets and liabilities from the
temporary administration of KazinvestBank JSC to SB Alfa-Bank JSC. Based on this agreement, on June 23,
2017, an agreement was concluded between SB Alfa-Bank JSC and the Group on the pledge of cash classified
by the Group as non-current cash with restricted use.

In September 2018, the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan revoked the banking license of Bank
Astana- Finance JSC . The Group accrued a provision for expected credit losses for the full amount. The Group
recovers the accrued allowance for expected credit losses for the amount of payments received.

14. EQUITY
Information on the sole shareholder and ultimate controlling party is provided in Note 1 .

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Group's share capital was fully paid and amounted to
193,351,569 thousand tenge.

As at December 31, 2024, the amount of the Group's repurchased equity instruments in full is 22,356,100
thousand tenge (as at December 31, 2023: 21,051,538 thousand tenge).

In April 2024, the sole shareholder decided to purchase the previously repurchased 16,250 shares of the Group
at a price of 1,000 tenge per share for a total of 16,250 thousand tenge and transfer a real estate object as
payment for the shares.
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14. EQUITY (continued)

In August 2024, by the Resolution of the Akimat of Almaty, the constructed cable duct engineering networks were
transferred to the ownership of the Group for a total of 491,865 thousand tenge and the previously repurchased
458,275 shares of the Group were acquired at a price of 1,000 tenge per share for a total of 458,275 thousand
tenge. :

These real estate objects were received with their subsequent transfer to the subsidiary company "Capital
Construction Enterprise of the Akimat of Almaty City" LLP by contributing to the authorized capital of the
subsidiary company.

In October 2024, a decision was made to transfer the administrative building in payment for the previously
repurchased 879,780 shares of the Group at a price of 1,000 tenge per share for a total of 879,780 thousand
tenge.

In December 2024, the sole shareholder decided to repurchase 2,588,380 of its own shares at a price of 1,000
tenge per share for a total of 2,588,380 thousand tenge and transfer the Construction in progress projects of the
Municipal Bus Depot No. 3 to the municipal property of Almaty against the repurchased shares. The repurchase
transaction was registered on January 5, 2025.

Dividends

In accordance with the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan, the Group's distributable reserves may not
exceed the Group's retained earnings in accordance with its consolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with IFRS, or income for the period in the case of losses carried forward. Distribution may not be
made if this would lead to a capital deficit or insolvency of the Group. No dividends were declared during the
reporting period (in 2023: no dividends were declared).

15. LOANS RECEIVED

Maturity Percentage
thousand tenge dates bid Currency 31.12.2024  31.12.2023
Loans to related parties 2024-2026 0.01% Tenge 9,135,103 11,949,520
9,135103 11,949,520
Short term part 6,230,608 4,240,207
Long term part 2,904,495 7,709,313

9,135,103 11,949,520

Loans to related parties

During 2019-2022, the Group received preferential loans from the parent company to contain prices for socially
important food products, which were accounted for at amortized cost. The loans are unsecured, denominated in
tenge, with an interest rate of 0.01% per annum, with a maturity of 2024-2026.

The loans were discounted to their net present value, which reflects the fair value of the debt, which is the present
value of expected cash flows, and amounted to 12.4%-19.2% at the time of initial recognition. The unwinding of
the discount and changes in estimates were reflected in the income statement as finance income (expenses).
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15. LOANS RECEIVED (continued)

The movement of loans received is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Nominal value
On January 1 14,999,997 26,574,000
Loans received 5,000,000 -
Repayment of loans received (8,000,000) (8,820,000)
Interest accrued 1,477 463,681
Interest paid (1,477) (463,681)
Exchange rate difference - (2,754,003)
As of December 31 11,999,997 14,999,997
Discount
On January 1 (3,050,477) (5,150,163)
Recognition of discount (2,046,344) -
Change in ratings (819,424) 400,584
Amortization of discount 3,051,351 1,699,102
As of December 31 (2,864,894) (3,050,477)
Carrying amount
Short term part 6,230,608 4,240,207
Long term part 2,904,495 7,709,313
As of December 31 9,135,103 11,949,520
16. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS UNDER CUSTOMER CONTRACTS
thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Advances received 48,110,097 147,299
Non-current contractual liabilities 246,729 214,628

48,356,826 361,927

17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Trade accounts payable 4,131,267 3,013,280
Estimated liability for claims 744,800 200,000
Salary arrears 7,332 216
Debt to individuals for liabilities to transfer housing 6,261 6,261
Security deposits for participation in the tender 2,670 82,563
Trade payables to subsidiaries - -
Other accounts payable 263,802 150,372

5,156,132 3,452,692

The State Institution "Almaty City Construction Department” filed a lawsuit against the subsidiary company of the
Capital Construction Enterprise of the Almaty City Akimat LLP to recover in favor of the state budget a penalty in
the amount of 931,000 thousand tenge and a state fee in the amount of 27,930 thousand tenge due to incomplete
fulfilment of liabilities under Public Procurement Agreements for the purchase of housing for socially vulnerable
groups of the population. On April 17, 2024, the Specialized Interdistrict Economic Court of Almaty ruled to satisfy
this claim.
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17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

In this regard, the Group recognized a reserve for the estimated liability for the claim. On August 29, 2024, the
Group made a payment in the amount of 186,200 thousand tenge.

On September 18, 2024, a ruling was received from the Civil Cases Division of the Almaty City Court, according
to which the subsidiary company "Capital Construction Enterprise of the Aimaty City Akimat" LLP was granted a
6-month installment plan for the execution of the decision from August 8, 2024 to February 8, 2025, with a monthly
payment of 150,512 thousand tenge.

On October 8, 2024, the State Institution "Almaty City Construction Department" submitied a letter to the
subsidiary company "Capital Construction Enterprise of the Almaty City Akimat" LLP, where it agrees to provide
an installment plan for 5 years with an annual payment of 186,200 thousand tenge.

Despite the existence of the above letter, the subsidiary plans to repay this debt in full by the end of March 2025.

18. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH BUYERS

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Sale of apartments, residential buildings and non-residential premises 6,842,577 2,937,179
Income from food sales 1,075,732 214,178
Operator services for maintenance and provision of the Industrial

Zone in the Alatau district of Aimaty 1,027,408 1,732,545
Rental income from investment property 225,313 206,752
Other implementation - 737,255
Free transfer of apartments - 140,190

9,171,030 5,968,099

The Group's delivery of services and the transfer of apartments and residential buildings occurs over a period of
time, as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits as the Group delivers them.

19. COST OF SALES

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Cost price of apartments and residential buildings 6,499,785 2,240,886
Cost price of food products 1,075,732 214,178
Payroll expenses 408,641 264,064
Depreciation 292,826 457,219
Utility costs 115,658 -
Landscaping warks 96,803 -
Security services 70,980 -
Professional Services 55,945 30,823
Social tax and social contributions 44 482 21,689
Cost price of non-residential premises 28,962 166,376
Future expenses 24,058 12,589
Costs of paying for services - 137,545
Cost price of parking lots - 127,198
Other 56,072 97,351

8,769,944 3,769,918
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20. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Payroll expenses 2,126,138 2,283,384
Social tax and social contributions 177,281 166,960
Taxes and payments to the budget 162,134 242 521
Depreciation and amortization 121,531 150,412
Rental expenses 93,127 78,419
VAT not accepted for offset 93,022 167,611
Expenses for the implementation of the fair 68,384 56,309
Audit and evaluation costs 49,422 69,286
Personnel provision services 43,004 30,151
Insurance expenses 36,605 28,024
Consulting services 33,264 34,308
Repair and maintenance of property, plant and equipment 20,954 26,692
Travel expenses 11,526 14,899
Expenses on repo transactions 10,881 13,724
Information services 9,740 9,820
Financial services 8,292 6,103
Utility costs 6,647 7,151
Materials 6,560 10,434
Communication services 6,119 3,140
Security services 5,805 6,781
Cleaning of office premises 4,690 3,297
Third party services 4,387 8,929
Bank services 1,948 23,107
Future expenses 1,518 1,412
Other 129,592 107,184

3,232,671 3,550,058

21. FINANCIAL INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Financial income

Amortization of discount on installment contracts 7,182,385 5,157,381
Income from repo transactions 2,222,362 2,587,857
Discount on loans received 2,865,768 (400,584)
Loan remuneration 958,495 826,574
Deposit rewards 834,951 2,114,542
Amortization of discount on loans issued 185,421 61,506
Warranty fee 138,616 -
Income from investment activities 37,007 1,140,521
Total financial income 14,425,005 11,487,797
Financial expenses

Amortization of discount on loans received (3,051,351)  (1,699,104)
Discount on loans issued (963,264) -
Loan interest expenses (1,477) (463,681)
Discount on installment contracts - (25,616,053)
Total financial expenses (4,016,092) (27,778,838)

Total financial (expenses) income 10,408,913 (16,291,041)
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22. PROPERTY SALES INCOME, NET

Income from Expenses for Total income
sale of the sale of from sale of
thousand tenge property property property, net
2024
Right of redemption of lease 170,667 (2,799) 167,868
Non-residential premises 20,643 (10,000) 10,643
Construction in progress 3,117,142 (3,117,119) 23
3,308,452 (3,129,918) 178,534
2023
Land plots 90,757,532 (59,730,912) 31,026,620
Apartments 41,521 (9,377) 32,144
Other assets 144,301 (51,439) 92,862
Total income from sale of property, net 90,943,354 (59,791,728) 31,151,626

23. RECOVERY OF LOSSES/(LOSSES) FROM IMPAIRMENT

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Reversal of impairment losses
Reversal of the provision for impairment of other non-current assets 173,998 -
Recovery of the provision for impairment of loans issued 103,102 560,046
Recovery of the reserve for impairment of advances issued 22,702 186
Recovering the reserve for impairment of investments 3,805 -
Recovery of the provision for impairment of accounts receivable 3,691 2,479,031
Reversal of the provision for impairment of cash 1,250 44,627
Restoring the reserve for fines 5 3
308,548 3,083,893
Impairment losses
Accrual of reserve for impairment of cash (17,150) -
Accrual of reserve for expected credit losses on loans issued (33,167) -
Accrual of provision for impairment of accounts receivable (406,995) -
Accrual of provision for impairment of investment property - (45,600)
Accrual of reserve for expected credit losses on asset under repo - (91)
(457,312) (45,691)
(148,764) 3,038,202
24. INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES)
The Group's income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 202 3 is as follows:
thousand tenge 2024 2023
Current income tax expense 399,476 8,297,919
Deferred income tax expense (163,673) (381,591)
Income tax expenses 235,803 7,916,328

In the Republic of Kazakhstan, income tax is calculated at a rate of 20% of the estimated taxable profit for the
year (period). Deferred taxes are calculated at the rates applicable to the period in which the asset is realized or
the liability is settled.
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24, INCOME TAX EXPENSE AND DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (LIABILITIES) (continued)

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Income before tax 8,236,657 19,044,615
Tax at the established rate of 20% 1,647,331 3,808,923
Change in unrecognized tax assets (1,442,088) 4,107,521
Tax impact of exchange rate and other permanent differences 30,560 (116)
Income tax expenses 235,803 7,916,328
Effective tax rate 3% 42%

The amounts of deferred tax assets (liabilities) are presented below:

thousand tenge 31.12.2024 31.12.2023
Discount and amortization on loans received (672,979)  (610,095)
Other reserves 450,459 553,074
Reserve for lawsuits 148,960 40,000
Vacation reserve 26,376 18,557
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 11,553 (100,631)
Taxes payable 3,109 2,900

67,478 (96,195)

The movement of deferred tax assets (liabilities) is presented as follows:

thousand tenge 2024 2023
Opening balance (96,195)  (477,786)
Recognized as (expenses) income 163,673 381,591
Final balance 67,478 (96,195)

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party, is under common control,
or can exercise significant influence aver the other party in making financial or operational decisions. In assessing
related party relationships, the economic substance of the relationship, and not just its legal form, is taken into
account.

Related party transactions:

thousand tenge Shareholder Associated companies
December 31, 2023

Loans received (13,500,000) -
December 31, 2023

Loans received (15,000,000) -
Implementation to related parties 1,307,015 -
Share of loss of associates - (36,363)

Key Management Transactions

The total amount of remuneration of key management personnel included in administrative expenses (Note 20)
is 156,495 thousand tenge (2023: 191,130 thousand tenge).
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26. CONTRACTUAL AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS

Lawsuits

The Group is involved in various immaterial legal proceedings related to its operating activities, such as claims
for fines, penalties under loan agreements, and disputes over state procurement. The Group does not believe
that such pending or threatened legal proceedings, individually or in the aggregate, could have any material
adverse effect on its financial position or operating results.

The Group assesses the probability of material liabilities arising and recognises a corresponding provision in the
consolidated financial statements only when it is probable that events giving rise to the liability will occur and the
amount of the liability can be measured on a reasonable basis.

Taxation

Kazakhstan's tax legislation and regulations are subject to constant change and varying interpretations. There
are frequent cases of disagreement between local, regional and national tax authorities. The current regime of
fines and penalties for identified and confirmed violations of Kazakhstan's tax legislation is strict.

Tax audits may cover five calendar years of operations immediately preceding the year of audit. Under certain
circumstances, audits may cover longer periods. Due to the uncertainties inherent in the Kazakhstan tax system,
the potential amount of taxes, penalties and interest, if any, may exceed the amount expensed to date and
accrued as of December 31, 2024,

Management believes that as of December 31, 2024 its interpretation of applicable law is appropriate and it is
probable that the Group's tax position will be sustained.

Environmental issues

The Group is required to comply with various environmental laws and regulations. Kazakhstan environmental
legislation is constantly changing and subject to varying interpretations. Although management believes that the
Group complies with government environmental requirements, there can be no assurance that contingent
liabilities do not exist.

Financial guarantees

On November 17, 2023, the Group entered into a guarantee agreement with Black Biotechnology LLP to ensure
the proper performance of Black Biotechnology LLP's obligation to bondholders in the amount of 1,500,000
thousand tenge, which is 75% of the par value of the bonds issued by Black Biotechnology LLP . The guarantee
covers Black Biotechnology LLP's liabilities on the principal amount of the debt, excluding accrued interest and
other additional expenses.

According to the terms of the agreement, the financial guarantee comes into force on the 101 day from the date
of commencement of circulation of the bonds, i.e. from the moment when the bonds officially began trading,
which occurred on October 24, 2023. Thus, the guarantee became active on February 2, 2024 and is valid for
three years.

For providing the guarantee, the Group receives a fee of 3% per annum of the guarantee amount, which is paid
quarterly. The fee is recognized as part of operating income at the time of its accrual in accordance with the
established payment schedule.
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26. CONTRACTUAL AND CONTINGENT COMMITMENTS (continued)

As collateral, the Group was provided with a building under construction for the production of bio-feed additives
and fertilizers, subject to quarterly revaluation as construction stages are completed, vehicles and production
equipment, a 95% stake in the authorized capital of Black Biotechnology LLP , as well as personal guarantees
from the management of Black Biotechnology LLP .

At the reporting date, the risk of losses under the guarantee is estimated as low, since Black Biotechnology LLP
fulfills its liabilities on time. In the event of deterioration of the financial condition of Black Biotechnology LLP , the
Group recognizes a reserve for covering credit losses in the amount of expected losses.

The Group provided a financial guarantee for the liabilities of Sleipnir Technologies LLP to SDF | B.V. in the
amount of no more than 7,350,000 thousand tenge. As of the reporting date, the probability of occurrence of the
liability is recognized as low, since Sleipnir Technologies LLP fulfills its liabilities on time. As a result, the liability
is not recognized. In the event of deterioration of the financial condition of Sleipnir Technologies LLP , the Group
recognizes a reserve for covering credit losses in the amount of expected losses.

Environmental issues

The Group is required to comply with various environmental laws and regulations. Kazakhstan environmental
legislation is constantly changing and subject to varying interpretations. Although management believes that the
Group complies with government environmental requirements, there can be no assurance that contingent
liabilities do not exist.

Terms of business

Kazakhstan continues to implement economic reforms and develop a legal, tax and administrative infrastructure
that would meet the requirements of a market economy. The stability of the Kazakh economy will largely depend
on the progress of these reforms, as well as on the effectiveness of the measures taken by the Government in
the sphere of economics, financial and monetary policy.

During 2024, the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan decided to reduce the base rate to 14.75% per
annum with an interest rate corridor of +/- 1 percentage point. External inflationary processes continue to develop
favorably against the backdrop of falling global food prices and the restrictive policy of central banks. Inflationary
pressure remains in the domestic economy due to stable domestic demand, supported by fiscal stimulus, as well
as inflated and unstable inflation expectations.

The Group continues to evaluate the impact of these events on its operations, financial position and financial
condition.

The Group's management believes that it is taking appropriate measures to maintain the Group's economic
sustainability in the current environment.

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In connection with its activities, the Group is exposed to various financial risks associated with its financial
instruments. The Group's principal financial instruments include: loans to customers, trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances issued, trade and other payables. The principal risks arising
from financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk and foreign exchange risk.
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27, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group's financial instruments are as follows:

thousand tenge 31.12.2024  31.12.2023
Financial assets:

Non-current financial assets 22,671,001 15,668,371
Non-current accounts receivable 47,494,045 43,502,738
Investment securities 32,21 62,739
Trade and other receivables 5,159,036 453,662
Current financial assets 2,199,791 2,758,160
Repo asset 7,248,580 11,728,105
Cash and cash equivalents 70,178,560 69,727,029

154,983,224 143,900,804

Financial liabilities:

Non-current loans received 2,904,495 7,709,313
Current loans received 6,230,608 4,240,207
Trade and other accounts payable 5,156,132 3,452,692

14,291,235 15,402,212

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a transaction in a financial instrument will
cause the other party to incur a financial loss by failing to meet its contractual obligation. Credit risk arises from
the Group's credit and other transactions with counterparties that give rise to financial assets. Financial assets
that potentially expose the Group to credit risk include primarily cash and cash equivalents, deposits, and trade
receivables from related parties.

The Group's maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of these instruments:

thousand tenge 31.12.2024  31.12.2023
Non-current financial assets 22,671,001 15,668,371
Non-current accounts receivable 47,494,045 43,502,738
Investment securities 32,211 62,739
Trade and other receivables 5,159,036 453,662
Current financial assets 2,199,791 2,758,160
Repo asset 7,248,580 11,728,105
Cash and cash equivalents 70,178,560 69,727,029

154,983,224 143,900,804

The Group creates an estimated reserve for expected credit losses. The Group places its cash only in approved
financial institutions and within the limits set for each financial institution. The limits are set in order to minimize
the concentration of risks and reduce financial losses in the event of insolvency of a financial institution. The
Group places its cash in second-tier banks of the Republic of Kazakhstan with a credit rating of "Standard and
Poor's » not lower than BB .

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will have difficulty obtaining funds to settle its liabilities under financial
instruments. Liquidity risk may arise from an inability to quickly sell a financial asset at a price close to its fair
value. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity needs and management ensures that sufficient funds are
available to meet any outstanding liabilities.
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Below is information about the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated amounts of
undiscounted interest payments:

e PSR T rom
December 31, 2024

Trade and other accounts payable 4,131,267 1,024,865 - 5,156,132
Loans received 338 5,006,775 7,001,225 12,008,338

4,131,605 6,031,640 7,001,225 17,164,470

December 31, 2023

Trade and other accounts payable 3,013,302 336,769 - 3,350,071

Loans received 2,000,375 4,001,125 9,001,025 15,002,525
5,013,677 4,337,894 9,001,025 18,352,596

Interest rate risk

The Group has no loans and borrowings with variable interest rates at the reporting dates of December 31,. The
Group does not account for any financial instruments with fixed interest rates in the manner prescribed for
instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss or as available for sale. Therefore, any change in interest
rates at the reporting date would not affect the amount of profit or loss for the period or equity.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk
relates to the Group's operating activities . The Group does not hold financial instruments other than its functional
currency and is not exposed to foreign exchange risk.

Fair value

Management believes that the fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities approximates their carrying
amounts. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is calculated by Level 2 of the hierarchy.

28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On March 14, 2025, a subsidiary of the Almaty City Akimat Capital Construction Enterprise LLP made a payment
on the claim of the Almaty City Construction Department State Institution in the amount of 200,000 thousand
tenge and on March 26, 2025 , made another payment in the amount of 200,000 thousand tenge.

In December 2024, the sole shareholder decided to repurchase 2,588,380 of its own shares at a price of 1,000
tenge per share for a total of 2,588,380 thousand tenge and transfer the Construction in progress projects of the
Municipal Bus Depot No. 3 to the municipal property of Almaty against the repurchased shares. This repurchase
operation was registered on January 5, 2025.

There were no other significant events after the reporting date of December 31, 2024, until the date of
authorization of these consolidated financial statements.




